
Meeting Minutes 
State College Borough Council 

August 6, 2007 
 
The State College Borough Council met in a regular meeting on Monday, August 6, 2007, in the State 
College Municipal Building Council Chambers, 243 South Allen Street, State College, PA.  Mr. Welch 
called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Present: Bill Welch, Mayor 
 Catherine G. Dauler, President of Council 
 Thomas E. Daubert 
 Ronald L. Filippelli 
 Elizabeth A. Goreham 
 Donald M. Hahn 
  Jeffrey R. Kern 
Absent: Craig R. Humphrey 
 
Also present:  Thomas J. Fountaine, II, Borough Manager; Thomas S. Kurtz, Assistant Borough 
Manager; Carl R. Hess, Planning Director; Herman Slaybaugh, Zoning Officer; Amy R. Miller, 
Recording Secretary; Mark Whitfield, Public Work Director; Mark Henry, Health Director; Beth 
Johnston, Personnel Director; Thomas King, Chief of Police; members of the media; and other 
interested observers.     
 
PUBLIC HOUR.  There were no comments from the public.   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Request for Changes to Liquor License Conditions for Boltera, Inc., dba Rotelli Pizza Pasta, 
250 Calder Way.  Mr. Fountaine said at Council’s meeting on July 16, 2007, Michael Hughes and 
David Krauth, co-owners of Rotelli Pizza Pasta restaurant, presented a request to Council asking that 
Council agree to modify provisions in their Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board (PLCB) license that 
restricts the hours during which alcoholic beverages may be served at the restaurant and permit vocal 
entertainment.  He added that the current restrictions on their license prohibit alcohol sales between 
midnight and 2:00 AM and prohibit vocal entertainment.  Although the PLCB is the licensing agency, 
this license was transferred into the Borough from another municipality and requires Council’s 
approval to modify the conditions of the license. 
 
Mr. Fountaine said Council will open the public hearing to receive public comment on the petition to 
modify the conditions attached to the retail liquor license.   
 
Louis Geschwindner, 277 Ellen Avenue, Borough resident and member of St. Paul’s United Methodist 
Church, spoke in objection to the Rotelli request.  He said he believes the change in hours of 
operation would be adverse to the community and immediate area.  Mr. Geschwindner read from Mr. 
Hughes original letter in 2005 requesting that St. Paul’s Church Council rescind their objection letter 
to the PLCB, promising the Church that Rotelli would benefit the neighborhood and make the 
downtown more desirable.  He added that he feels personally betrayed by Mr. Hughes because Mr. 
Hughes said the restaurant would focus on food rather than alcohol.     
 
Bob Johnson, 954 Crabapple Drive, member of St. Paul’s Church Council, said he initially opposed 
the restaurant in 2005 but after talking to Mr. Hughes he reversed his decision.  He added that there 
were eight crimes committed the past week and five of them occurred after 2:00 am; and that public 
drunkenness is out of hand.  He noted that downtown churches and cars have been vandalized by 
drunks.  He asked Council to keep the Rotelli restrictions originally implemented and consider limiting 
hours of the existing bars.   
 
Mayor Welch indicated the existing bars were controlled by PLCB and that Council has no authority 
on their hours of operation. 
 
Wayne Bicehouse, 1126 Westerly Parkway and Board Member of Faith United Church of Christ, said 
he was against expanding the hours of operation of Rotelli Restaurant.  Mr. Bicehouse said the 
installation of the streetlight in the alley was beneficial but the late night problems remain the same 
(public urination and individuals throwing-up in the alley).  He added that the only way to control the 
problems is to keep the hours of operation restricted.    
 
Dave Krauth, 3160 Shellers Bend and co-owner of Rotelli, said thank you to St. Paul’s Church for 
reading the 2005 letter that Rotell initially sent to them.  He said that Rotelli has kept all their promises 
made which include being a family oriented restaurant as well as providing chicken fingers every 
Thursday to St. Paul’s Day Care children.  Mr. Krauth provided letters of support to the recording 
secretary for the public record.  He added that no reports of vandalism or other such crimes were a 
result of the establishment.  Rotelli Restaurant is asking for equal opportunity to compete with the 
other area restaurants downtown serving late night food and drinks.  He noted that his staff has been 
through training and is prepared to handle the issues of staying open late and asked Council to 
reward responsible businesses.   
 



Mike Hughes, 158 Skytop Lane in Port Matilda and co-owner of Rotelli, said the issues brought up 
this evening are old news and the issues have been on-going since before Rotelli opened.  Mr. 
Hughes said he had a casual conversation with Carl Boon, grounds keeper for St. Paul’s Church, and 
asked him how Rotelli has impacted the neighborhood.  He said Mr. Boon’s response was very 
positive and said the addition of the alley streetlight was most beneficial and contributed to less 
trouble in the alley late at night.  Mr. Hughes noted that college students were not the typical Rotelli 
customers and wanted to make the residents aware of what Rotelli is requesting, which is an 
opportunity to compete with the other late night restaurants and bring adults back into the downtown.  
He added that for the record Rotelli has lived up to every promise that was read by Mr. 
Geschwindner. 
 
Gordon Hanczar, 209 Seneca Circle and property manager for 250 Calder Way, said that from the 
time when Rotelli opened for business vandalism has declined.  He noted that because there is now 
an honorable establishment operating at 250 Calder Way, there have not been any police calls 
regarding Rotelli.  He said as property manager he receives the police calls.  He added that the 
restaurant has brought additional business to Calder Way. 
 
Ken Blythe, 937 McKee Street, said that Rotelli came in to existence with the conditional rules and 
now wants to become a bar. He said he believes if Council grants Rotelli’s request, it would be 
detrimental to the neighborhood area and the Borough. 
 
David Fryer, 687 Thompson Street, Lemont, said Rotelli’s liquor license was granted under specific 
conditions and was accepted at face value by St. Paul’s church.  He said to reduce the opportunity for 
crime is to reduce the number of incidents.  He added that the problems are not with Rotelli, but 
rather when individuals leave the establishment.  Mr. Fryer asked Council to vote in opposition to the 
late night hour request. 
 
Bonnie Johnson, 965 Crabapple Drive, noted that her memory recalls Rotelli making promises they 
did not keep.  She said one promise was to not display advertisements for liquor.  She said shortly 
after Rotelli opened for business she patronized the restaurant and twice reminded Mr. Hughes about 
the sandwich board signs which would continue to reappear; which led her to discontinue patronage.  
Ms. Johnson said another promise Rotelli made was that access to the bar was only available 
through the restaurant upstairs, and there is currently an entrance to the bar from the street.   
 
Joanne Steindorf, Walnut Spring Lane, asked Council to review the original research from 2005 when 
Rotelli’s application for the liquor license transfer was submitted.  She also questioned who would 
monitor the new restrictions if granted.  Ms. Steindorf said that Rotelli was not to serve alcohol after 
midnight and there was to be no live entertainment.  She said she opposed revisions to the original 
license agreement.  Ms. Steindorf also asked if the request was granted, if there was a formal 
objection process.  Mr. Fountaine said PLCB would need contacted because there is no formal 
objection process.   
 
Parvathy Hughes, 158 Skytop Lane, said if Rotelli were to remain open late, there would be a late 
night food menu.  She asked St. Paul’s Church to state one thing that has been detrimental to the 
neighborhood as a result of the restaurant opening.  Ms. Hughes said Rotelli is asking for extended 
hours to compete with other establishments in the downtown.   
 
Ms. Dauler said when reviewing the original resolution, she noted the bar was to have an opaque 
screen separating it from the restaurant area.   
 
Mr. Krauth said the wall was inadvertently missed by all involved including PLCB and the Borough’s 
Health Department.  Mr. Krauth noted that it came to Rotelli’s attention recently and distributed plans 
to Council showing a six-foot wall that will be constructed to separate the bar from the rest of the 
restaurant.     
 
Mr. Filippelli said Council’s purpose was not to criticize Rotelli; Rotelli has been a benefit to the 
Calder Way neighborhood.  He said Council’s issue is whether the changes requested would 
adversely affect the welfare, health, peace and morals of the Borough of State College or its 
residents.  Mr. Filippelli added that when Rotelli first requested the liquor license transfer, the transfer 
was unlike the current liquor licenses in the downtown and Council was able to set conditions. He 
said he believes Council is trying to control the sale of alcohol whenever possible and this is one way 
to control it and added that Rotelli is caught in the middle. 
 
Mr. Filippelli moved to reject Rotelli’s request to amend the conditions set forth in the original liquor 
license transfer; Mr. Daubert seconded the motion.   
 
Mr. Daubert added that staying open until 2:00 am and providing entertainment would contribute to 
the crowds and noise in the downtown.   
 
Mr. Hahn said he was not prepared to vote on the issue this evening.  He added that Rotelli was in 
fact at a competitive disadvantage; however, Rotelli’s liquor license is not the same license that the 
Tavern or any other downtown establishment has.  He noted that Council made an agonizing choice 
to bring a liquor license in to the Borough but were able to set forth conditions.  Mr. Hahn added that 
he was impressed with the improvement to the corner of McAllister Street and Calder Way.   
 



Mr. Kern said he frequents Rotelli.  He said he agreed with Mr. Filippelli in that Rotelli is caught in a 
special circumstance.  Mr. Kern said he would love to limit other establishments and expand Rotelli’s 
hours because they run a commendable establishment.  He added that the problem establishments 
have ruined the situation for the fine establishments.    
 
Mayor Welch said there was no such condition set forth that if Rotelli was on good behavior, their 
original conditions could be lifted.  Mr. Fountaine added that Rotelli originally requested a 2:00 am 
closing time, but Council established midnight closing as a condition of the transfer and agreed to 
reconsider the operating time with the license renewal in 2009. 
 
Ms. Goreham asked if Rotelli could sell or transfer their liquor license; Mr. Fountaine replied the 
license could not be sold or transferred unless Council agreed.   
 
Council voted unanimously to reject Rotelli’s request to amend the conditions set forth in the original 
liquor license transfer. 
 
CONSENT ITEMS.   
 
Ms. Dauler moved to approve the following consent items.  Mr. Kern seconded the motion, which 
passed unanimously. 
 

• Approve the following minutes for meetings held in June 2007. 
 

• June 1, 2007 • Work Session 
• June 4, 2007 • Regular Meeting 
• June 11, 2007 • Work Session 
• June 18, 2007 • Regular Meeting 

 
• Approve the use of High and Holly Alley from East Foster Avenue to High Street for a block 

party on Saturday, August 18, 2007, from 4:00 to 9:00 p.m., conditioned on Holly Court 
remaining open for emergency vehicles. 

 
• Approve the use of Hartswick Avenue from McKee Street to Allen Street for a block party on 

Sunday, September 2, 2007, from 4:00 to 10:00 pm. 
 

• Approve the use of the 500 block of Ridge Avenue for a neighborhood picnic on Sunday, 
September 9, 2007 from 4:00 to 9:30 p.m., with a rain date of Sunday, September 16, 2007.  

 
• Approve the use of the 100 and 200 blocks of South Allen Street and the 100 block of West 

Foster Avenue for the America’s Day of Kids on Saturday, September 22, 2007, from 6:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., with the condition that Calder Alley remains open to delivery traffic and 
Highland Alley close at the Beaver Avenue parking lot.  

 
• Accept a resignation, with regret, from Anne Messner of the Historic Resources Commission.  

 
• Appoint Betty Grudin to the Authorities Board with a term ending December 31, 2011.   

 
Ms. Goreham moved to approve a collective bargaining agreement between the Borough of State 
College and the State College Police Association for 5 years with the contract expiring on December 
31, 2012.  Ms. Dauler seconded the motion, which also passed unanimously. 
 
GENERAL POLICY AND ADMINISTRATION 
 
Creation of the Fraser Centre Tax Increment Financing District.  Mr. Fountaine explained that 
Tax Increment Financing is an economic development tool that municipalities in Pennsylvania have 
been authorized to use since the passage on the Tax Increment Financing Act in 1990 (Act 113 of 
1990, as amended).  Tax increment financing allows communities to use increases in real estate and 
other taxes generated by redevelopment as one component of the funding package for a 
redevelopment project. He noted that the use of tax increment financing (TIF) as part of the overall 
financing package for Fraser Centre has been under discussion for a number of months and that 
establishing the tax increment district is needed to complete the funding package for the Fraser 
Centre. He added that in order to use TIF, a tax increment district must first be established.   
  
Mr. Fountaine stated that the Tax Increment Financing Act establishes the procedures for both use of 
TIF and for creating a tax increment district, and at the request of Downtown State College, the State 
College Redevelopment Authority (SCRDA) has prepared and approved a TIF District Plan for the 
Fraser Centre Tax Increment District.  He added by a unanimous vote on June 21, 2007, the 
Authority forwarded the Fraser Centre TIF Plan to Council and requested that Council approve the 
plan as provided for in the TIF Act.   Mr. Fountaine said as required by the Act, the SCRDA met with 
representatives of all taxing bodies to review the proposed TIF District and Plan and made 
presentations to State College Area School District Board and to the Centre County Commissioners; 
by unanimous vote, both of these entities have agreed to participate in the Fraser Centre TIF District.  
He said the State College Area School District approved a resolution binding the District’s 
participation in the Fraser Centre TIF Plan at a regular meeting of the School Directors held on June 



25, 2007, and the Centre County Commissioners adopted an ordinance binding the County’s 
participation in the Fraser Centre TIF Plan at a regular meeting of the Board of County 
Commissioners held on July 3, 2007.  
 
Mr. Fountaine said the SCRDA formally presented the Fraser Centre TIF District and Plan to Council 
on July 9, 2007 as part of the public hearing held by Council on the proposed TIF District.   Following 
the public hearing, Council approved a motion to direct staff to prepare an ordinance for the creation 
of the Tax Increment Financing District for vote this evening.  
 
Paul Lundeen, Esq., Rhoads & Sinon, explained the ordinance and the formal action of Council and 
the law that requires a public hearing. The ordinance will establish the TIF effective 0ctober 1, 2007 in 
agreement with the SCASD, the County Commissioners and the Borough of State College.  The 
ordinance indicates the Borough will allocate 87% of the tax increment to finance of the project.  Mr. 
Lundeen said the Law permits the TIF district to last up to 20 years and the financing would be paid 
off within that time frame.   
 
Mr. Daubert moved to adopt the Ordinance establishing the Fraser Centre TIF District and the TIF 
Plan.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Dauler.   
 
Ms. Goreham noted that this decision was not easy and said many individuals devoted a great deal of 
time to this project and that she wants to keep the public active in the project.   
 
Mr. Kern said he received a lot of phone calls at home against the TIF.  He said one comment was 
that the TIF was presented to the public to quickly and that the Borough should not subsidize a 
private project.  However, Mr. Kern said that projects such as the Colonnade, the baseball stadium, or 
the Sheetz would not exist without subsidized funding.  He added that he feels the complex would 
benefit the downtown.  
 
Mr. Hahn said Council has had numerous discussions, he has had ample time to argue his points, 
and he continues to be opposed to this project.   
 
Ms. Dauler said she also received phone calls, but the calls were all positive.  She noted that calls 
included calls from residents not living in the Borough, but still considers the downtown ‘their’ 
downtown just as the Downtown Improvement District has said the downtown belongs to everyone.   
 
Mr. Filippelli said he will support the TIF and added that it was Council’s responsibility to think about 
the future of the Borough.  He said State College cannot be turned around in two years, but the 
Fraser Centre is a start and is a rare opportunity for a community-wide effort which he is proud to be 
associated.       
 
Council voted 5-1-0 in favor of the establishing the TIF District and the TIF Plan, with Mr. Hahn voting 
no. 
 
Pedestrian Oriented Uses.  Mr. Fountaine said Council is asked to enact a zoning ordinance 
amendment to amend pedestrian oriented frontages in the downtown.   He said a public hearing was 
held and no one spoke on the issue, and following the hearing Council announced its intention to 
enact the revised ordinance.  He said staff recommends Council enact the proposed amendment. 
  
Ms. Goreham said she supports the amendment but wanted to make the public aware that she is in 
favor of a downtown where one can live and work professionally.   
 
Mr. Kern said he agreed with Ms. Goreham and hopes that professional offices will not be forced from 
the downtown.    
 
Mr. Hahn said the key to this ordinance is the limitations in the downtown retail core which do not limit 
second floor offices or offices in other areas such as Beaver Avenue and other side streets; he noted 
that he will support the amendment.   
 
Mr. Kern moved to enact the zoning ordinance amendment to amend pedestrian oriented frontages in 
the downtown; Ms. Dauler seconded the motion and Council voted unanimously in favor of the 
amendment.   
 
 Adjust Building Permit Fee Multiplier and Minimum Fee.  Mr. Fountaine explained that the COG 
General Forum voted to recommend adjustments to the Building Permit Fee Multiplier and Minimum 
Fee.  He said the General Forum recommended adjusting the Building Permit Fee Multiplier from 
.006 to .0075 and increasing the minimum fee from $40.00 to $56.00; both changes would become 
effective on August 31, 2007.  Mr. Fountaine said staff recommends that Council adopt the resolution 
approving the building permit fee adjustment. 
 
Mr. Kern asked that the Code Administration Committee was look at the whole fee structure including 
consideration of the building size and number of inspections required.   
 
Mr. Kern moved to adopt Resolution 943 approving the building permit fee adjustment; Mr. Daubert 
seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 
 



OFFICIAL REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 
 
Mayor’s Report.  Mayor Welch noted the death of former Council Member, Dan Chafee, who was 
the youngest member to serve on Council.   
 
Mayor Welch announced the success of the FIPS – Mouche 6th International Fly Fishing Competition.  
He added that the event was quite an impressive production and participants represented nine 
countries.   
 
President’s Report.  Ms. Dauler wished a happy 90th birthday to former mayoral first lady, Nancy 
Addison.   Ms. Dauler announced Council held an executive session prior to the meeting to discuss 
labor relations and personnel matters and litigation.  She added that Council will adjourn to another 
executive session to discuss real estate.   
 
Regional Liaison Reports.  Mr. Daubert said he serves on the ad hoc code committee and the next 
meeting will be in September; he said he would report back to Council in October.   

 
Staff/Committee Reports.  Mr. Fountaine noted that the Health Department Quarterly Report was 
attached to Councils’ agenda for their review.  He said the report included the first quarterly report of 
enforcement activities from the Health Department.  He then asked Council if they had questions. 
 
Mr. Daubert asked for better enforcement on his street for failure to remove recycling bins days after 
collection; he said enforcement is never done for this problem.   
 
Ms. Goreham asked if warning violations counted towards points for problem properties.  Mr. 
Fountaine answered no and said that warnings are not violations and do not count towards the points 
received.   
 
Mr. Kern said there are currently six nuisance properties listed and asked if the properties were 
accumulating additional violations.  Mr. Fountaine said no points have accumulated so far over the 
summer, but the report was generated three weeks prior to the meeting.  
 
Ms. Goreham questioned the noise level from summer rented fraternities.  Chief King said there have 
not been any reports related to fraternity rentals.  He added that most fraternities close for summer 
and there are fewer rentals than in previous years.   
 
Mr. Kern said residents have complained to him that there are a number of cars parking on the street 
on the 300 block of Barnard and said there was not enough residential parking.  He said the resident 
said a certain property may have become a rental without proper authorization and asked that 
Borough officials look into this situation.   

 
Items of Information.  Mayor Welch announced the State’s first voluntary drought watch of the 
season and urged residents to conserve water usage.   
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:00 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
  
__________________________________ 
Cynthia S. Hanscom 
Assistant Borough Secretary 


